Greater Cleveland 1240 West Bth Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Qhio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority will take place at Tuesday, March 21, 2023 in the Board
Room of the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Clevetand, OH 44113 for consideration of the
listed items and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon.
This meeting will be live streamed on RTA's Board Page www. RideRTA com/beard via the
meeting date for staff and members of the public. Members of the public may attend in person.

Based on Centers for Disease Controf ("CDC”") guidance to avoid crowded places where you
cannot stay 6 feet away from others and Ohio Department of Public Health advice regarding
congregating and social distancing, as well as RTA's interest in protecting community and
employee health and safety, RTA Board Room and Meeting Room 1 capacity is limited to thirty-
six {36) people to allow for social distancing. To accommodate members of the public, RTA will
limit the number of staff permitted in the Board Room. All persons entering RTA's Main Office
Building ("MOB") at 1240 West 6" Street are required to maintain a distance of six feet or more
from other individuals who are not members of their family or household.

As a result of a federal court order on April 18, 2022, the CDC's January 29, 2021 order
requiring masks on public transportation conveyances and at transportation hubs is no longer in
effect. The CDC continues to recommend that people wear masks in indoor public
transportation seltings at this time. As a result, GCRTA recommends, but will not require, that
members of the public wear a mask/face covering.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA's website at (www.riderta.com/board), on RTA's
Facebook page, and RTA's Twitter page.

9:00 AM. Annual Meeting

Board of Trustees Meeting

?fz’@x’“{z’ : {){ 0. J A &4 v%;

India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

BT tab
Attachment



Vi

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Annual Meeting
March 21, 2023

Call to order of Annual Meeting

Roll Call

Certification regarding notice of meeting

Conduct Annual Meeting of the Board of Trustees

A. Nominations and election of the Office of President
B. Nominations and election of the Office of Vice President

Adjournment of Annual Meeting



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, March 21, 2023

9.00 a.m.

Call to order
Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of the February 28, 2023 Board Meeting minutes
Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:

a. Inperson

b. Phone: 440-276-4600

¢, Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and

staff

Board Governance Committee report

Qperational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
« Chair: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
=  Chair; Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
¢ Chair: Mayor Paul A, Keomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committes report
s Chair, Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
» Board Liaison: Ms. Valarie J. McCall

Ad Hoc Committee reports:
=  Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee - President Charles P. Lucas, Chair

¢ Ad Hoc Technology Commitiee — Ms, Luz Pellot, Chair
Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions
Executive Session Requested

» Toconsider the appeointment, employment, dismissal, discipling,
promotion, demotion, compensation of a public employee or official.



RTA Board of Trustees
March 21, 2023

Page 2

15, Introduction of resolutions:

A

2023-18 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-088 with UKG, inc. to provide
an applicant tracking system for a three-year period in a total contract
amount not to exceed $347,000.00 (General Fund, Management
Information Services Depariment budgeat)

2023-19 - Authorizing Contract No. 2023-003 with CPC Industries, Inc.
for the furnishing of heavy-duty cleaner/degreaser, as specified and as
required, for a period of two (2) years, in an amount not to exceead
$161,000.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget)

2023-20 ~ Authorizing Contract No. 2023-012 with Transit Sourcing
Services, Inc. for the procurement of 28-inch sieel wheels for heavy rail
vehicles in an amount not to exceed $458,000.00 (General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget)

2023-21 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-014 with Northeast Lubricants
LTD. for the furnishing of transmission fluid, as specified and as required,
for a period of one (1) year in an amount not to exceed $112,275.00
(General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget)

2023-22 — Authorizing Confract No. 2022-139 with HDR Engineering, Inc.
for Project 19,46 — On-Call Architect/Engineer Services - 2022 in an
amount not to excead $300,000.00 for a period of 24 months {KTA
Capital and/or Development Funds, Engineering & Project Development
Department budget)

2023-23 — Appraving a new three-year collective bargaining agreement
covering conditions of employment with the Fraternal Order of
Police/Ohio Labor Council, Inc.

16. Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

General Fund Revenue — status as of February, 2023 versus 2022
actuals

General Fund Revenue - status as of February 28, 2023 versus the 2023
budget

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2023, actual receipts
through March 2023

Inventory of Treasury Investments as of February 28, 2023

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of February 28, 2023

Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through February 28,
2023

Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of February, 2023
Composition of Investment Portfolio as of February 28, 2023

Banking and Financial Relationships as of February 28, 2023



RTA Board of Trustees
March 21, 2023

Page 3

17.
18.
18.
20.

21,

22

23.

General Manager's Report

President's Report

Old Business

New Business

Public comments {2 minutes) on public fransit related items:
a. Inpeérson

b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and

staff

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, April 18, 2023 in the
Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's Board page
(www.RideRTA. corm/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public is welcome
to attend in parson,

Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting

9:49 a.m. February 28, 2023

Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Biasiotia, Joyce, McCall, Welch

Not present: Koomar, Moss, Pellot, Weiss

Staff: Alien, Birdsong Terry, Burney, Caver, Ciesla, Clark, Coffey, Dangelo, Feinn, Ferreli, Fields, Fleig,
Garofoli, Keshtkaren, Kirkland, Miller, Schipper, Steiner, Sutula, Talley, Vukmanic, Walker-Minor,

Woodford, Young

Public: Bingaman, Friedman, Gibbons, Loh, Martin, McDonneil

The meeting was called to order at 9:49 am. There were five (5) board members present.

It was advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four bours in advance of the
meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other interested persons, and that
all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding notice of
meeting have been complied with,

Minutes

President Lucas stated that the minutes from the January 31, 2023 Board Meeting had been previousty
distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections. There were no

corrections, The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

1.

Shawn Freeman - He's representing the paratransit community. At last month's meeting, Shalida
Dabbins requested updates to the website to make it more assessable (keyboard, reservation and
cancetation line). Rides must be made a week in advance. She requested a meeting or response

from the Board, but she didr't hear back.

Ms, Hirdsong Terry asked him to follow-up with Nick Davidson, Director of Paratransit who is here
today, We have a new staff member who will be working with IT on the ADA page. The website is
under review. Ms. McCall mentioned that this is also a medicat industry issue,

Lob ~- She agreed with the statements made about paratransit. Doctors can cancel appointments
with short notice. No shows end up on rider's records if they can't cancel the ride in time.

Chris Martin — He is the Chair of Clevelanders for Public Transit (CPT). Shalida Dobbins is the
Vice Chair of CPT. He asked Mayor Biasiotta to email him at info@clefortransit.org with his main
concern for his city and he will tell him how better bus service is a part of that solution. CPT fights
for the restoration of service cut by RTA. RTA must be bold and provide excellent public transit,

Additional funding must be found.

Mayor Biasiofta said his interest on the Board is more global. He is a big advocate for public
transit. He rode RTA to CSU and downtown for 20 years. His uncle was an operator and his dad
rode RTA for over 40 years. His interest is fo pravide the best mobility for everyone in the county.
it's important for jobs, the disabled, etc. The Board must make tough decisions to adhere to the
budget. 1t requires a partnership with the state, county and federal government. He wants to use
his connactions to improve the funding. He asked Mr. Martin to tell him where the funds can be

used more efficiently.



RTA Board of Trustees
February 28, 2023
Page 2 of 5

4. Airric Stewart ~ He repeated his proposal to reinstate the 15A. His proposal will connect riders to
librares, schools, retail and medical facilities.

5. Rev. Pinkney - Rev. Pinkney sent her commaents to President Lucas. Operators are welcome to
attend Board Meetings without retaliation.

Committee Reports
There were ng reports.

Community Advisory Committes (CAC)H

There were no reports,

Ad Hog Comimittee Reports

There were no reports.

Introduction of New Employees/Fromotions

New Hires:
Vladimir Gremi - Operator

Toniesha Johnson — Operator

Leon Wells — Oparator

Laurance Edwards — Operator

Robin Hood - Operator

Charles Whitehaad — Operator

Larry Greathouse — Operatar

Thomas Stover — Operator

Antoine Finley — Operator

10. Karess Hines - Operator

11. Fawnda Martin ~ Operator

12. Marcellus Porter — Operator

13. Jonathan Bruce — Janitor

14. Tayla McClendon — Paratransit Reservations Operator
15. Richard Burgos ~ Maintenance Technician

16. Aaron Lewis — Electronic Equipment Maintainer
17. Joseph Clark — Community Engagement Specialist
18. Chanel Steiner — Supervisor of Digital & Externat Marketing
18, Emily Bailey - Executive Assistant

20. Paul Dzurik — Maintainer

21. Yadie! Roman ~ Transit Police Officer

22. Omar Rojos — Laborer

23, Jayme Inks ~ District Business Analyst

LN LN =

1. Claudiu Dugata — Electronic Repair l.ead

2. Mitchell Crawford Il — Electronic Repair Lead

3. Rodnika Phillips - Dispatcher

4. lLaurie Edwards - Dispatcher

5. Dion Cunningham - Money Handler

6. Michae! Gomez —~ Maintenance Technician

7. Erica Wiens — Supervisor Cross Trained

8. Stacie Menefee — Assistant Operator Instructor



RTA Board of Trustees
February 28, 2023

Page 3 of &

9. Paul Hudy — Signal Technician

infraduction of Rasolutions:

A.

2023-8 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-082A with Future Age, Inc. dba Provide A Ride to
provide contracted paratransit services in an amount not to exceed $17,044,485.35 for a
pariod of three years, and in amounts not {o exceed $6,243 059.71 and $6,474, 762 .80 for
gach of two option years, respactively, for a total five-year contract amount not to exceed
$29,762,307.86, (General Fund, Paratransit Department budget), the adoption of which
was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta and approved by unanimous vote.

2023-9 ~ Authotizing Contract No, 2022-082b with GG Logistics of Mississippi, LL.C to
provide contracted paratransit services in an amount not to exceed $11,106,075.91 for a
period of three years, and in amounts not to exceed $3,912,322.56 and $4,016,054.09 for
each of two oplion years, respectively, for a tofal five-year contract amount not to exceed
$19,034 452,56 (General Fund, Paratransit Department budget), the adoption of which was
moved by Ms, McCall, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous vote.

A representative from GC Logistics thanked the Board for the opportunity.

2023-10 — Authorizing Contract No, 2022-082C with Senior Transportation Connection to
pravide contracted paratransit services in an amount not to exceed $5,400,370.89 for a
period of three years, and in amounts not to exceed $1,916,788.07 and $1,978,398.27 for
each of two option years, respectively, for a total five-year contract amount not to exceed
$8,205,557.23 (General Fund, Paratransit Department budget), the adoption of which was
moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous volte,

A reprasentative fram STC thanked the Board for the opportunity. President Lucas
thanked them for taking care of matters from the iast contract,

2023-11 -~ Authorizing Contract No. 2022-120 with Warren Roofing & Insulating Co. for
Project 19.59 — Shaker Shelter Roof Replacement, in an amount not to exceed
$102,000.00 (RTA Capital Fund, Engineering & Project Development Dapartment budget),
the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by Ms. McCall and approved by
unanimous vote.

2023-12 — Authorizing Contract No, 2023-015 with Trillium Transportation Fuels, LLC dba
Trillium CNG to provide CNG Operations & Maintenance Services for the Authority's
Hayden District CNG Fueling Station for a period of five years in an amount not to exceed
$3,200,000.00 (General Fund, Hayden District Budget), the adoption of which was moved
by Mr. Joyce, seconded by Ms., Welch and approved by unanimous vote,

2023-13 — Approving revised list of positions designated to use Purchasing Cards, the
adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCalt, seconded by Mr. Joyce and approved by
unanimous vote,

2023-14 — Amending Section 222.04 Community Advisory Committee of the Codified Rules
and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and approving
amanded Operating Guidelines for the Community Advisory Commitiee, the adoption of
which was moved Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous vote,

Ms. McCall thanked the staff for their work and leadership and the members of the CAC.
The new pracess and application will engage the public more. Ma. Walker Minor thanked
Ms. McCall for her leadership and guidance. Two new employees to the Administration



RTA Board of Trustees
February 28, 2023
Page 4 of 5

and External Affairs Department include Joseph Clark, Community Engagement Specialist
and Chanel Steiner, Supervisor of Digital & External Marketing.

H. 2023-15 - Removing Saction 640.03 Political Activity frorn the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and amending Personnel
Policy 100.03 Political Activity, the adoption of which was moved by Ms, MeCall, seconded
by Mr. Joyce and approved by unanimous vote.

. 2023-16 — Amending Chapter 465 Financial Assistance of the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the adoption of which was
moved by Mr. Joyce, seconded by Ms. MeCall and approved by unanimous vote,

J. 2023-17 — Approving the 2023 Internal Audit Plan, the adoption of which was moved by
Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous vole.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Kay Sutula, Directar of the Office of Managemeant and Budget, gave the presentation in Mr. Gautam's
absence. The U.S. annual inflation rate has increased from 2.5% in January 2020 to 9.1% in June 2022,
Since June the inflation rate has been faliing. At the end of January 2023, inflation is down to 6.4% and is
expected to fall the remainder of the year. The Federal Reserve raised interest rates in December 2022 to
its highest lavel in 15 years to fight against inflation. The Federal Open Market Commitiee increased

interest rates to 4.43%.

The U.S. unemployment rate was 3.5% in December 2022, down from 3.7% in November 2022. The Ohio
and County unemployment rate is preliminary and not seasonally adjusted. The Ohio rate remains steady
at 4.2% in December 2022. Cuyahoga County dropped to 3.5% in December. Looking at the five largest
metropolitan statistical areas (MSA). Thesze are not seasonally adjusted. For December 2022, the rates
are preliminary from the Bureau of Labor Statistics. Cleveland is 3.5%, down from 4.2%. Toledo is 3.9%,
up from 3.3%. Dayton is 3.5%, up from 3.1%. Cincinnati rose to 3.1%. Columbus rose to 3.1%,

January ridership was 37% above January 2042 levels. Compared to January 2022, ridership increased in
all modes. January ridership was 1.68 milion compared to 1.22 million in January 2022, Passenger fares
for January 2023 was $1.8 million or 18.1% above January 2022 which was $1.5 mitlion and 39.6% lower
than January 2019. February 2023 sales tax receipts (for November 2022 activity) is 9.2% higher than
February 2022. YTD itis 6.1% higher than 2022.

General Manager/CEO Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEO gave the report. Transit Employee Appreciation Day will
be celebrated, Friday, March 24. Staff held several events for February Heart Health Month. A DEI&E
Leadership Retreat was held February 3 in the Board Room. Ms. Birdsong Terry was a judge for the
Accelerate 2023 competition. The Connectwarks Ribbon Cutting was held February 16 at the Southgate
Transit Center, Several partners were in attendance including Senator Matt Dolan, County Executive
Chris Ronayne, Solon Mayor Edward Kraus and others. The nexi set of proposals are due March 30 for

the second pilot.

The new MetroHealth Line sponsored CNG buses are on the street. A bus was out front for touring.
Twelve of the 20 buses are in service. Staff testified in Columbus on projects that were funded for rai
cars, buses, tight rail track replacement, microtransit and Baby on Board. Several recommendations for
ODOT TRAC competitive grants are in draft form or currently in progress including
25Connects/Metrotealth BRT and Light Rail Track Replacement. Final recommeandations are expected
March 29, 2023. Ohio Loves Transit Day was February 7. Several staff members met with Senators in
Columbus, The General Managers internal update is going digital to reduce paper. The 2022 Annual
Report video was played,



RTA Board of Trustees
February 28, 2023
Fage 5of &

Public Comments — public transit related items

1.

Chris Martin — He thanked the Board members and staff who attended the CPT Transit Equity Day
rally and Ride Along. RTA asked for status quo funding from the State. CPT believes that Ohio is
unconstitutionally governed by a radical right wing, super majority which has for years openly
displayed its contempt for cities like Cleveland and Cuyahoga County. The State and Federal
goverament is not a sustainable funding source.

Loh — The reason RTA does not have enough workers is due to less training. The website needs
work. The county, city and State websites are all ADA insufficient. She requested the CAC and
Transit Ambassadars work to improve the service and tackle funding issues.

Ms. Welch added that the leadership at RTA is really being mindful of the level of engagament with
the community and riders. CPT ie doing armazing work engaging with the public. She hopes for
synergy between the customer surveys, RTA and CPT.

Airric Stewart - He repeated his proposal to reingstate the 15A. His proposal will connect riders to
librarias, schools, retail and medical facilities. The customar surveys have not worked. He's
gotten disconnected several times from the RTA Community Connection Line, 216-621-9500. He
hasn't received a call back from Mr. Rivera in the Telephone Information Department,

President Lucas said all of Mr. Stewart's concerns have been reviswed by the Service
Management department. He hasn't had any issues with the Community Cennection Line but
thanked Mr. Stewart for his feedback.

Lipcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting and the Annual Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, March 21, 2023 in the
Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This
meeting will be live streamed on RTA's Board page (www.RideRTA comfboard) by selecting the meeting
date. The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 1:51 a.m.

Aftest:

Prasident

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 |
TTLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: APPLICANT TRACKING SYSTEM 2023-18
Date:
VENDOR: UKG‘ INC. March 18, 2023
AMOUNT:  NTE $347,000.00 FOR A THREE-YEAR PERIOD Initiator:
Management
Information Services
ACTION REQUEST:
# Approval 11 Review/Comment [ Information Only [0 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
("Autharity”} to enter into a contract for an applicant tracking system.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/AJUSTIFICATION: The Authority has an immediate need to attract, identify,
and hire qualified employees. In support of this effort, the Authority is seeking an applicant
tracking system, which is a software as a service-based solution that will standardize and
automate recruitment, hiring, and onboarding processes. The current processes exist in
several different digjointed and manual systems. The applicant tracking system will maximize
productivity by automating administrative tasks, strearnlining the recruitment cyele, reducing
time-to-hire and cost-to-hire, and offering a better applicant experience.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROWUND: The Request for Proposals ("RFP") was posted on the
Authority's Procurement website and advertised in local newspapers. Twenty-two (22}
interested parties downloaded the solicitation, and four (4) responsive proposals were received
on October 5, 2022. After evaluation by a panel of Authority employees in accordance with
established Procurement Department policies and procedures, the proposal from UKG, Inc,, to
provide an applicant tracking system, was determined to be the most advantageous to the
Authority, price and all other factors considered. After negotiations, a contract amount not to
exceed $347,000.00 for a three-year period was agreed upon. The total amount includes a
$32,000.00 one-time fixed-fee for implementation and training. In addition, an annual fee of
$105,000.00 was negotiated for each year of the three-year term. This amount is
approximately 24% below the estimate for this project.

A cost analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Depariment has determined the price
to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE

firms.
5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the General Fund,
Management Information Services Department Budget, for a total contract amount not {o
exceed $347,000.00 for a three-year period.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would delay the Autharity’s ability to
attract, identify, and hire qualified employees.



Staff Summary & Comments
Applicant Tracking Systemn 2023-18
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
March 7, 2023 Organizational, Services and Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. It is
recommended that the offer of UKG, In¢c. be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing
the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into & contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements,

’;Z ﬂ?{zﬂ[{f : /Qé D, ,_./v{c-fﬁfﬁ

General Manager, Chief Executive @fficer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-18

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-088 WITH UKG, INC. TO PROVIDE AN
APPLICANT TRACKING SYSTEM FOR A THREE-YEAR PERIOD IN A TOTAL
CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $347,000.00 (GENERAL FUND,
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SERVICES DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) is seeking to
utilize an applicant tracking system which is a software as a service-based solution that will
standardize and automate recruitment, hiring, and onboarding processes; and

WHEREAS, UKG, inc., headquartered in Westaon, Florida, submitted a proposal to
provide the application tracking system for a three-year period in a total contract amount nof to
exceed $347,.000.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of UKG, Inc.,
as negotiated, to be in the best interest of the Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by
the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of UKG, Inc., to provide an applicant tracking system, be and
the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with UKG, Inc. to provide an applicant tracking
system for a three-year period.

Section 3. That said contract will be funded through the General Fund, Management
Information Services Department Budget, in a total negotiated contract amount not to exceed
$347,000.00 for a three-year period.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees, bonding and
insurance requirements and alt applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the

Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that UKG, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 0% DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: March 21, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF HEAVY-DUTY 2023-19
CLEANER/DEGREASER, AS SPECIFIED AND AS Date:
REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF TWO (2) YEARS March 16, 2023
Initiator;
VENDOR: CPC INDUSTRIES, INC. Fleet Management
AMOUNT:  NTE $161,000.00 Department
ACTION REQUEST:
# Approval ) Review/Comment [ Information Only 1] Qther

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
{“Authority”) to enter info a contract for the furnishing of heavy-duty cleaner/degreaser, as
specified and as required, for a period of two (2) years.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority uses heavy-duty cleaner/degreaser for interior
and exterior surface cleaning of its transit vehicies, including the chassis and undercarriage.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids {"IFB") was posted on the
Authority's Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Thirty (30) inferested
parties downloaded the solicitation. Three (3) bids were received on February 15, 2023, and
two (2) were deemed responsive, The bid of CPC Industries, inc. has been determined by the
Procurement Department to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder,

Supplier Anticipated Usage Anticipated Usage Totat Contract
Year 1 Year 2
50,000 gal. 50,000 gal.
CPC Industries, Inc. Unit Cost - $1.61 tUnit Cost- $1.61
A $80,500.00 $80,500.00 $161,000.00
G & L Supply Unit Cost - $2.29 Unit Cost - $2.29
. $114,500.00 $114,500.00 $229,000.00

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Depariment has determined the
total bid from CPC Industries, Inc. to be fair and reasonable to the Authority,

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Al Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due {o the lack of certified DBE

firms.
FOLICY IMPACT. Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amourt not to exceed $161,000.00 for a period of two
(2) years, The contract award is approximately 30% below the budget estimate.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid would delay procurement of this product
and cause the Authority to be without heavy-duty cleaner/degreaser that would adversely affect

the physical appearance of the Authority's revenue vehicles.



Staff Summary & Comments 2023-19
Heavy-Duty Cleaner/Degreaser
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: it is recommended that the bid of CPC Industries, inc. be accepted
and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter

into a contract.

8.0 ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

:} /Zée,wfff, 2’[% ). ‘»f"f/;’:lfﬂ:z &

General Manager, Chief Executivé Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-19

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NQ. 2023-003 WITH CPC INDUSTRIES, INC. FOR
THE FURNISHING OF HEAVY-DUTY CLEANER/DEGREASER, AS SPECIFIED
AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF TWQO (2) YEARS, IN AN AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $161,000.00 (GENERAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (*Authority”) has a
recurring requirement {o obtain heavy-duty cleaner/degreaser, as specified and as required, for
a period of two (2) years, to be used by the Authority for interior and exterior surface cleaning of
transit vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the bid of CPC Industries, Inc. with an office at 712 East 163" Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44110, for the furnishing of heavy-duty cleaner/degreaser, as specified and as
required, for a period of two (2) years, at unit prices resulting in a total contract amount not to
exceed $161,000.00, was received on February 15, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid from CPC
Industries, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of CPC Industries, Inc. for the furnishing of heavy-duty
cleaner/degreaser, as specified and as required, for a period of two (2) years be and the same

is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with CPC Industries, Inc. for the furnishing of
heavy-duty cleaner/degreaser, as specified and as required, for a period of two (2) years.

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $161,000.00 for a period of two

(2) years.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, thereto, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding
and insurance reguirements; and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the

Authaority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that CPC industries, inc. will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to
this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: March 21, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary- Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resoclution No.:
CONTRACT; PROCUREMENT OF 28-INCH STEEL WHEELS FOR 2023-20
HEAVY RAIL VEHICLES Date:
March 16, 2023
VENDOR:  TRANSIT SOURCING SERVICES, INC. Initiator:
Fleet Management
AMOUNT: NTE $458,000.00 Department
ACTION REQUEST:
B Approval [ Review/Comment [} information Only 1 Other
1.0  PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

(“Authority”) to enter into a contract to purchase 28-inch steel wheels for the Autharity's heavy
rail vehicles.

DESCRIPTION/AJUSTIFICATION. This is a recurring purchase to provide for all labor,
materials and apparatus required for the delivery of AAR M-107/M-208 Class C 28-inch solid

steel wheels. These wheels will be complete and ready for installation onto the Authority's fleet
of Tokyu-built heavy rail vehicles.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids ("IFB") was posted on the
Authority's Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Nine (9) interested
parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. Two (2) bids
were received and opened on March 2, 2023 as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
Transit Sourcing Services, Inc. $458,000.00
LucchiniRS Sp.pA $489,200.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price. The Tota! Base Bid price of $458,000.00 from Transit Sourcing Services, Inc. is
0.43% less than the Independent Cost Estimate of $460,000.00. Transit Sourcing Services,
Inc. was determined to be a responsible bidder.

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid of Transit Sourcing Services, inc. has been
determined by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonabie to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
mat. A 0% DBE participation goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of
certified DBE firms.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, including but not limited to 100% local funds, in an amount
not to exceed $458,000.00.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid will risk the Authority being able to
provide heavy rail service.




Staff Summary & Comments
28 Inch Steel Wheels for Heavy Rail Vehicles 2023-20

Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid from Transit Sourcing Services, Inc. be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

to enter into a contract,

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and cerified as appropriate to the
availahility of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements,

;’?ﬁdfﬂw : I /{/ %fufw

" General Manager, Chief Execulive Officer




RESOLUTION NQ. 2023-20

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-012 WITH TRANSIT SOURCING
SERVICES, INC. FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF 28-INCH STEEL WHEELS FOR
HEAVY RAIL VEHICLES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $458,000.00
(GENERAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) has a
recurring need to purchase 28-inch steel wheels for the Authority’s heavy rail vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of Transit Sourcing Services, Inc., located at 12789 Therns
Ferry Drive, Fort Mill, South Carolina 29708, was received on March 2, 2023, in an amount not

to exceed $458,000.00: and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Transit
Sourcing Services, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Transit Sourcing Services, Inc. for the procurement of 28-inch
steel wheels for the Authority’s heavy rail vehicles be and the same is hereby accepted,

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Transit Sourcing Solutions, Inc. for the
purchase of 28-inch steel wheels for the heavy rail vehicies.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, including but not fimited to 100% local funds, in an amount

not to exceed $458,000.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an abligation of the Authority
contingant upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable iaws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Transit Sourcing Services, inc. will attempt to exceed the 0% minimurm DBE goal
assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: March 21, 2023
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Farm 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF TRANSMISSION FLUID, AS 2023-21
SPECIFIED & AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE Date:
(1) YEAR March 16, 2023
. Initiator:
VENDQOR: NORTHEAST LUBRICANTS LTD. Fieet Management
Department

AMOUNT:  NTE $112 275.00

ACTION REQUEST:
E Approval 1 Review/Comment [ Information Only {1 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
{*Authority”) to enter into a contract for the procurement of transmission fluid, as specified and
as required, for a period of one (1) year.

2.0 DESCRIFPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has a recurring need for transmission fluid for
the maintenance of all revenue and non-revenue vehicles,

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGRQUND: The Invitation for Bids (*IFB") was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Thirteen (13) interested parties
downloaded the solicitation. Three (3) responsive bids were received on March 1, 2023, The
bid of Northeast Lubricants l.td. has been determined by the Procurement Department to be
the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder.

Supplier Anticipated Cost Per Gallon Total Contract
Usage
Gallons
Northeast Lubricants Ltd. 4500 $24 95 $112,275.00
Reladyne | 4,500 $28.16 $126,720.00
Rowleys Wholesale 4,500 $29.21 $131,432 90

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE
firms. ‘

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $112,275.00 for a period of one
(1) year. The contract award is approximately 9% below the budget estimate.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Regiect this bid. Rejection of this bid would delay procurement of this product
and cause the Authority to be without transmission fiuid, adversely affecting the maintenance of
all revenue and non-revenue vehicles,



Staff Summary & Comments 2023-21
Transmission Fluid
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of Northeast Lubricants Ltd. he
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to enter into a contract,

9.0 ATTACHMENT. None
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

L:;z/?/ff{'*’w“/f/ // _2{/1) ) /JC ‘.i“‘!)'fﬁ"

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-21

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-014 WITH NORTHEAST LUBRICANTS
LTD. FOR THE FURNISHING OF TRANSMISSION FLUID, AS SPECIFIED AND
AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $112,275.00 (GENERAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET})

WHEREAS, the Greater Clevetand Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) has a
recurring reguirement to obtain transmission fluid, as specified and as required, for a period of
one (1) year, to be used by the Authority for routine maintenance of all revenue and non-
ravenue vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Northeast Lubricants Ltd., located at 4500 Renaissance Parkway,
Cleveland, Ohio 44128, for the furnishing of transmission fluid, as specified and as required, for
a period of one (1) year, at unit prices resulting in a total contract amount not to exceed
$112 275.00, was received on March 1, 2023; and

WHEREAS, said bid was the lowest responsive and responsible bid received in
response to the solicitation; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Northeast
Lubricants Ltd., to be advantageous to the Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by
the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE 1T RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Clevetand Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Northeast Lubricants Ltd. for the furnishing of fransmission
fiuid, as specified and as required, for a peried of one (1) year be and the same is hereby
accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized 1o enter into a contract with Northeast Lubricants Ltd., for the
furnishing of transmission fluid, as specified and as required, for a period of one (1) year.

Section 3. This contract shali be payable from the General Fund, Fleet Management
Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $112,275.00 for a period of one (1) year.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements; and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Northeast Lubricants Ltd. will attempf to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal
assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: March 21, 2023

Prasident

Altest:

Secretary- Treasurer



Form 100-
326
01-12-22

Greater Cleveland Regicnal Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 19.46 - ON CALL ARCHITECT/ENGINEER 2023-22

SERVICES - 2022 Date:
March 16, 2023

VENDOR: HDR ENG[NEER|NG, INC., initiator: Engineering

and Project

AMOUNT:  NTE $300,000.00 FOR A 24-MONTH PERIOD Development

Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [ Review/Comment 0 Information Only [0 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
("Authority”) to enter into a contract for On-Call Architect/Engineer Services for a period of 24
months,

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This recurring project is to obtain professional services to
prepare plans, specifications, cost estimates, construction duration estimates, construction
support services, and safety cerification. Tasks will be issued to support Authority staff on
various projects. The services will be authorized on an as needed basis.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposals ("RFP") was posted on the
Authority's Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Twenty-seven (27)
interested parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package.
Two proposals were received in response to this solicitation on January 23, 2023. These
services were solicited through a competitive negotiated procurement, utilizing the Brooks Act
procedures. Under this process, the Authority's evaluation panel first selects the most
technically qualified firm, solicits a pricing proposal from that firm, and negotiates price only
with that firm. Should the Authority determine that an agreement cannot be reached with the
most qualified firm, it may reject that proposal and repeat the process with the next most
qualified firm. In this instance, negotiations were held with HDR Engineering, Inc., the first
ranked firm, and an acceptable price was reached.

in addition to the Authority, HDR Engineering, Inc. has successfully completed projects for the
Central Ohio Transit Authority, Nashville Metro Transit Authority, Southwest Ohio Regional
Transit Authority, and Houston Metro, among others.

The Procurement Department performed a cost analysis and determined the proposed pricing
to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Al Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 9% DBE goal was established for this procurement. HDR Engineering inc. has
committed to achieving the 9% DBE participation goal established for this procurement, which
is equivalent to $27,000.00, and has agreed to utilize 2LMN (Subcontinent Asian male-owned)
and Moody Engineering LLC (African American male-owned). The utilization of a particular
DBE firm will be a function of the specific nature of the On-Call services ultimately required
under the contract.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.




Staff Summary & Comments 2023.22
On-Call Architect/Engineer Services - 2022
Page 2

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital and/or RTA
Development Funds, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not
limited to 100% local funds and FTA Grants to be determined, in an amount not to exceed
$300,000.00 for a period of 24 months. This is the budgeted amount for this project.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer may impact the timely completion of
engineering projects and prevent access to external technical expertise when needed.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
March 7, 2023 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is
recommended that the offer from HDR Engineering, Inc. be accepted and the resolution
passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legat form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

(“;?%ﬁﬁ"‘?ff /ﬂ“{ ﬂ i //{'j[;jd‘

(General Manager, Chief Exedutive Officer



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-22

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-13¢ WITH HDR ENGINEERING, INC. FOR
PROJECT 19.46 — ON-CALL ARCHITECT/ENGINEER SERVICES - 2022 IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $300,000.00 FOR A PERIOD OF 24 MONTHS (RTA
CAPITAL AND/OR DEVELOPMENT FUNDS, ENGINEERING & PROJECT
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) requires on-
call architect/engineer services for preparing plans, specifications, cost estimates, construction
duration estimates, construction support services, and safety cedification; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of HDR Engineering, Inc., with an office iocated at 600
Superior Ave., Suite 1700, Cleveland, OH 44114, to perform said services was received on
January 23, 2023 in response to a competitive solicitation; and

WHEREAS, HDR Engineering, Inc. has agreed to perform the required services for the
negotiated labor rates in an amount not to exceed $300,000.00 for a period of 24 months; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer finds the negotiated hourly
rates to be fair and reasonable for said services and recommends acceptance thereof by the

Board of Trustees,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the negotiated offer of HDR Engineering, Inc., to provide various task
order services under Project 19.46 - On-Call Architect/Engineer Services — 2022, be and the
same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she ts hereby authorized to enter into a contract with HDR Engineering, Inc. for the performance
of said services.

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital and/or RTA
Development Funds, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not
limited to, 100% jocal funds and FTA Grants to be determined, in an amount not fo exceed

$300,000.00 for a period of 24 months.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority,

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that HDR Engineering, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 9% minimum DBE goal assighed
to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: March 21, 2023

President

Aftest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22
TITLR/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
APPROVING A NEW THREE-YEAR COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 2023-23
AGREEMENT WITH THE FOP/QLC Date:

March 16, 2023

Initiator:
Human Resources

ACTION REQUEST,
Approval 7 Review/Comment ] Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0
5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will approve a new three-year Collective Bargaining
Agreement ("CBA") with the Fraternal Order of Police/Ohio Labor Council, Inc. ("FOP/QLC").
The term of the new agreement will be from March 1, 2023 through February 28, 2026, The
new CBA describes the "Conditions of Employment” for employees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority ("GCRTA") coverad by the FOP/OLC bargaining unit, which
generally includes police officers, sergeants, dispatchers and security officers as well as the
incorparation of Transit Ambassadors through a Memorandum of Understanding with the
FOP/QLC. Employees covered by the new CBA number is approximately 5% of the GCRTA's

approximate 2,200 active positions,

DESCRIPTION/AJUSTIFICATION: The previous CBA with the FOP/OLC expired at midnight
on February 28, 2023 but continued in effect until this new CBA was negotiated and approved.
Negotiations for a new agreement commenced on December 21, 2022, Six joint bargaining
sessions occurred during January and February of 2022 between representatives of the
FOP/OLC and the GCRTA. These nagotiations cuiminated in a tentative agreement being
reached between the parties on February 24, 2023 for a new three-year CBA. The CBA was

approved by union membership on March 3, 2023,
FPROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGRQUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The subject action has important policy implications, principally in the areas
of cost control and service quality.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The estimated costs and savings associated with the major economic
provisions of the new agreement will be provided to the Board of Trustees,

ALTERNATIVES: Not approve the new three-year agreement as proposed. Management
wolld be reguired to direct the staff to return {0 the bargaining table with the FOP/OLC to seek

further changes or revisions.

RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the
proposed new three-year labor agreement with the FOP/OLC.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate
to the availability of funds, legal form and
conformance with the Procurement requirements.

\%é’fﬁ"fr J[)/l wi/‘ .4:1‘1 bay,

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-23

APPROVING A NEW THREE-YEAR COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
COVERING CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT WITH THE FRATERNAL
ORDER OF POLICE/OHIO LABOR COUNCIL, INC.

WHEREAS, the pravious Collective Bargaining Agreement (*CBA") between the
Fraternal Order of Police/Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (‘FOP/OLC”) and the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority ("GCRTA"), established on March 1, 2020, expired at midnight on
February 28, 2023 but continued in effect until a new agreement was negotiated; and

WHEREAS, collective bargaining hetween representatives of the FOP/OLC and GCRTA
has produced a new CBA covering the period from March 1, 2023 through February 28, 2026,

and

WHEREAS, the members of the FOP/OLC have approved the new CBA.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveiand Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA") for employees
represented by the Fraternal Order of Police/Ohio Labor Council, Inc, ("FOP/OLC") be and it is
hereby approved incorporating the changes, modifications, additions, and deletions, as
negotiated by the representatives of the FOP/OLC and the GCRTA to become effective
retroactive to March 1, 2023, and continue through February 28, 2026.

Section 2. That said contract will be funded through the General Fund.

Section 3. That the CBA, as amended, be and hereby is approved, and the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute said agreement.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: March 21, 2023

President

Altest:

Sacretary-Treasurer



[— s
ST HEFS ESE™a05'? LTSN § USEESEP $ weronT RIHE EEEATE 4 BS'IRETE 5 DIS'ISTSE ¥ ORI TEHIRED - JIRIE0E HEWD TYEOR

GGl WOLLE HETLT Srmad

MEET %0 aF TZLEAT S0b'Las PRy ] X=X D = 1TE6T9; TOETE TEETRT WO A0 SITHAGE SIHLG AN SEMIPE SERAMIIN TLGEENS
=00 - - - E T - . - - LINIFEEEERT H10 R LS10M - BETIYA SN0
E T WO - W TWHINAE
L] - - - - R0 - . - WrTHHY TrHI03E
L] - - - - E3 - - - - o kxR PELEH
et [=za-atf HAranr] BEEITT AT «0rg InTLOEE) leerezt BIE'S NEZ'GR S1dITITY SEOINETHRISIG
S0 - LE¥'EL : TER'EL wELT - fea'es : TEYEL FINWLSISSY SREVHIAG WHI034
%010 - - - - T - - - - T 19I0F LHES TVHI5IS IMEHNALNIIA SALNIAT RS
KEE2 - £50'659 SHL'E BEEOF WL [ sy ] lEie'T: SBE'T Lo FLYH W07 1EYAS W H30] LN ISHTENIIE NS
#BID [eT T8F l==T'seE: ra'ear BER'tE WL et [ees] BOT'SET £Rar SORNEIY K¥2 AN IOH FIS01IN

HIWD 30 SuFH05 UAHED CN D SIS LRSS

Ked'Z [EFE1T]] I59T Gl EER"ITE'T BETHIET BAFE 5 HET HiEwg ETTI0 LEFRIE ANEIATE HIHES TYLOLANS
ST T - 0T BIb'FE TA5'BE G B 4505 EbT'ST EGL'TE M3
-] - SRETIL BEL'D T 440: 14 ¥R - [E¥FsE LR'E ZE¥LE Fiedirzez LSaILN
%a1'0 (2TT) (124 bip'as ATE'SR BTG #EG 217 HI0'ET £a1'sE IMOONI 1913y
SIED ST GEIE BIP'6LL BELTRT BIET - Ci50E - oesre SHCESIFEAOD 55T 305N Ssapivn
KGRI (265 9k} [ ety E9E'ShR'T SrR'TI6 #ale - s ] TER'EQE SL1B6E SRS IO SN OIS RIS IS L e

FFNGA3S IBHAT

w09'ag ] LSETFZ TRT'ERS OF BREGHEY HETSE HEE'S [T PIBESIET 996°L5F'TT USRS ONILYETED TYL0LERS
[5EE] EI0T F8ETAFT TAT'EREDF BOS SHER ®ETTE [EE 1 TEE e T PEDBSS'RT SSEESE T 0L 150 3 53TwS

NGRS ST TE40

“ER'E SRt [ BETERL B AT BEEDT {4ETHE [FFEEIT) BETFELT SRR T SN MRTNEESY TVAOLBHE
HEET E3TEH 6L SBB'ED) =] BIET RELFE TIEES #06 L6E FIE 6T DHILROL FEAN
ST Booen 1555555 LR COE'EEL HBLEE {sarac) [ES3 555 GLE'B0BE A0ETRE YN
EN] 3244 5] 1256708 BRT'I5E fPT'ET G 1H5E] lasg'szs} TSETRE TSTEL SOEFIYYE INIANLE - OSHD
®IET #EETL LT AT ASA"TA'T 9eE'PRT'T £ ROOT BIEenL HA'ETS RS STIYE LTAILLCE
HET'E EEFET TEYLSE s AEETHEET € U19'E551 T RIET KIOHT LIETE +  DEwssd I 4 < ST 5

I ECEE T

WL D% JOMEHDR NN, EIT) [T MWEDL4C % IGNEHR LN HENCWS [JEETT
LN3EHND tioz fricd FUECE ) i Ok FUER T4

TEOZ BT AUYEEE OKY EZ0Z ST AUVNHE3H GF08T QO34 IHE B0
NI THEINID - dvds HOIHd O TFRVAN0S 93033038 HEYD 30 BE0d3y
ALIGHIEENY LISARHL o DECERE OA Y IAMT ) 411300 3aHL




WO ROTE FET'EICY 4 099'T99Er 3 TBE'TEO'BF S RHFOOT HEET TrEEER's € HESESTE 4 SbT9ESER E] aNNd TeHINTD - AINEDEY HEWD THLO0L

AT G115 RO L SAVAS JTWEASS

WEld HIT A FTO'ERE E2TILE ETH YR ~ [ TEEGZT T0E'TH HEUF H0 FROUN0S YIHL0 ONY SERINISHIHINITE PoLrEEnS
300 - - - - HH0 0 - - - - ERIVISHMANIEE HLY WIS T - INDIYASN0D
L] - - - - O - - - - -S4 TEINIA
%909 - : - - BT - - - - WOSHED TYE3034
w9 - . - - HhHEE - - - - L7 S3YD Tos3d 3
L T |8pgst iSRRIl CLBE SOT'RIT KT e L] ATLA'ER] CETET ILEER TadiIZ SNCIANYTASIN
L3 ] - 1EF'ED TEVED . HET - EFE TexEE - FINELTSTY DNLLWEIO THER T
wHa - - - - LY - - - - THZLS B T30 FEVLS "TPHI0F] I3NILNIFR InENIASH
HEEY - BESTI2 STE'CHF 08 BLGE SETESEF iE55's! i g GG |SF2E% I Too "33 S "WHIN3E] Rt ASHNEAITL LNSHD
%BTD I=eaosl prd L r | U HHY HIE el e L3 ] gt 'gs! e 0T SEHINEDS 0L INedCEe DN NS

THEWD 30 S30WFI05 DHEG ONY SN LERTE

SLLT [Ergre] t7s'sse} FFURET HTHEERT HITE - STE'pOS L4UE EILH ANBAATY EIHLG TRLCLENS
<0ra ®OT'EL Tas'el TS556 [T T [ET=4 ) YT Gl T [ HIHLD
LT E=14: 14 BreN e et COE'eaT HETE HIOSE) deas'g HFLE = oy BACIKS 25393LNI
=014 - ATH'ET OLETEr GO'DE HILT - I8T'61 158152 GOOGT M1 TELNIY
RLED ®AT'T ERE'Y S2LTST EEFELT HEED - sesea [ty - SHOBSIPED $53T 510 DNIREEH
WSA'T [%13'0E} Mereees SHLLE 065 I58'T HIE - SZYEE T =t I5L'S5E SNOHSSEAC S NS SN O RS | L TNy

TRNFATS EHID

WOGIE KESF ¢10999T TSN SETEEETY a5 KEES ZNSALE'T 96 LRI FIRLOOL SITEET DNILYEIED TYA04805
%09'98 RETY ATEEEN SR Er BE5'EEE TY [T YL TOSALET SO LTFTZ PN ELITE Nl 38 T STE

SRmEANT Svel T a0

EITE T SEhSL LEF'EIF'Y ITEELEF WEENT {274} 1526691 SOEBET TEL'RILT BRI SIS T TWADLRNE
%561 RLEE S5E78E LiSEos CEEEER KISE iwSrFtl PERH PET'SER ELLRAL SERELINEL NGONE
=SB HIEGT £BEEEY LOETTL Coeoes RipT HIFEF LEEEET LT oo'oes SEd
waii L ] iEc 75T ksl OOGTGE “Ean 1%F1el IEFE IST) 1571 =g e rs SEHVITHY] LHEGNES - O5AD
EIE'T (ZETT iFeeasTh S FHET COGREET HhbT Iscgsat] liseTey xepi] Lzl fe T A0S LIRSS
®ET'E HITET ATSE52 §  0sEss i COmeET 5 MueT I%aaa] 3 Fie ] EREL T S 0nooE 5 S3AWY4 HEwD

FIEVI HADAES Tl

THIOL4G % FONYN TR ;1T 13009 dL TIGE#0%  JONYHIN IR HiNOwW HaxoW
AMFHEMD BT T ENTAHADY L= JELLN

ETOT 'BE SHWEING34 030N Q01 IHL UO
AR TYEINID - 130000 O GIEY SN0 GIARITY HSYD £0 Lidd3s
AETITEELIY AISNYEE TeNQIST N IInTIs HAETIHSD 3HL




RSP HiEH Ly 65 '90%

WEGF Sidg LPSSOD'ERS

WEEE wILE T8 IPSLES
JONVIHYA  IDNYHD ROV
453 % 0iA % aLAEE0 ala

i n4 SNSHEN EZ0Z L2

A55'58Y50%
ST SEE LS

ZI0'OSELES

FIVHIISET

Qaia
EZ0E

TTEPOLYES  OELIELSS BLS S Hll L

LELTFEOFS CUC'EEr'oES ARG WELE

51 FEROES FoL'OlS'RLE 52 gl e
TNLDY TLDY EFR-T ML FONYHD
Ola Qis ATHANOW EZ0Z % HINOW

TZOT LT SNSYIAA TVNLDY 0T
ATHLINGN BASHAA

STOT A F

83XVL 35N ONY S3TVS
ALHOHLINY LISKVHL TYNOISE aONYIIATTID §3LVIHD

Hr' B ERS

Sjewlsa €707 UByl BubIy {526 %00°E5) %BS ¥
|eraoy Zz0e uey) Bybiy (61 9'622'v3) %59

ali

Jyewmse £2707 Yoiew uew sayBry {(E99'SEE L S) %25°S
[BF2Y Z20g LDJew ueyd ByBiy (£9%'£97°1$) %av L

SBL'BEO'6STS

FE2'BOG'5ES
995" 5P L2S
T LS LES

THLOY
A

FEL'ELLEES
T5TLET LS

209'806'2ES

¥B2'160'1Z8
G000 LS
0849 TTE
9E9'0E0EES
FLE'ACSBES
PSOTLEEEE
1EF0SE¥ES
POF 50 DES
BI09ELZS

Jivinilsa
£E0L

ETOT HOUVIN HONOWHL S1di3338 TYNLOY

SIETES PSS

BORSGLETS
SEREZ0LES
o8 P05 TS
N H S
HEL PO0'ETS
06L'5P2 225
PEYRLBEES
ZESELL SIS
SIFBLP'ELS
LPG LEE'EEE
FZOBEYELS
I5L'FRR'0TS

TLEDY
Te0Z

- —

Hiual
:Aleuning
GPLFYRIBEES PrEOL
SELBER DS HIBWIDOIC
ESFBZE0ES HIFNIAAON
SHEOSF LES HIFD1LDO
CEZRAE' LTS HIBNI LTS
9/5'F25 L2 1SN0y
E85'90L'02% AIE
FAG'FLE s ES N
SZI'EOE'LLE A
ZrE'162'aLE Teda¥
LBS'FE'0EE HIW
SUE'ZEE LS AHYAYE3S
PSLOLGALS AHYINYT
T ERIERE ]
¥ HINOHN



16018
BSZTL'L%
2L 9FG%
S PECE
SE'iL%

28°258%

98 ¥IF'SES

BELEEELE
2E'195 81T

£L8el'es
LBETL'8TLS
B1'E6¥ /0%
yOBFS
SP'glLe'es
SR'I5TTS
LABLLEES
£6'06635

e00LLS
SPOL0'9ZE
SpOSOFis
SPOSO LS

¢ 30 | abey

313G O1 HYHA 2202
J1lw3 OL HY3IA £202
CE0Z AHYNHE3d

YO Ol Hv3A 2202
FIV0 0L HvdA £Z08
£20€ AYYNYE3d

SIV0 OL ¥v3A 2202
FEV GL HY3A €202
£20€ AYYnyg34

F90 04 UV3A 2202
390 04 Hy3A £202
2202 AdVdgad

£20Z Advnya3d

QIHCHYLS
LNAQODY dI3IMS HNYE AT
GNINd LNSIREIHCANT MY

HOYYLS
KN4 AINFHASHI

LNNODOY dI3MS MNYE ATH-LNNOOOY INYHIHIN
ANACOSY AQDLISAD DNd

LNNOIOY d33MS MNYE ASM

QlHGYVYLS

LNAODOY XL SETYS-NOLONILNAH

ANAd IHINIS

LTHEYIN AZNOW NOLONIENAH
aNNd LNINFHEL TN ONOS

{(SISVE HSYD) SONINNYI LNIWLSIAN! NO 18043
ALIHOHLAY LISNYHL TYNOIDIY GNY1IATID HILYIHO



¥ 0r9'LLS
£epaes
99 0iL%

29048

or'Ls

B iES
FAs Rk
254

PG AGES
L8868
880 vE
ELFCR
£1'965°%8

b3 OEF'95%
LEIPS'ELPS
LE'B69'9ZZ¢
62180715
oegsees

£ 50z abey

34V0 0L Jv3A 2202
3AY0 G U334 €200
2202 AdYnuddd

31V OL Wv3A 220e
35V O WY €208

ETOL AYVnYg=d

SLVT 0L WYL 2202
PO OL Y3 €202
£20€ AdVindd34

LV 01 UY3IA 20T
HL¥0 0L Hy3A 2202
20T AHYNHad

£202 AYvHaa4
(SISVE HSYD)} SONINYYI INTWLSIANI NO LHN043Y
ALBHOHLINY LISNVUL TYNCIOIN GNVIZAT 1D ¥ILVIND

INNOJOV dI3MS HNYG ATH
ANNA TYLdYD Yid

1T AANOW MNYE AT
INRQIDY ALIALLDY 33A07dNS

LNNODOY 43S MNYE AT
CIHOYVYiS
ONAZ NOISN3d

LNNGIOV J33MS MNYE AN
HOLVIN T¥OOT-OIHOMYLS
GNIMd HOLYWN Y207



WIE'E
195 eV RIES

TEO'PLEES
BLL'ZEEZE
{£6Z'945° 18}

95Z2'80¢€" LS
31vd Ol
HY3IA £202

£90EFFELS
a5z e0e’ 1g
¥i'806°r99¢

ZEEEe'ess
BFSEO'PLOS
EL9yE09ES
1S4E918
GP'881'8LS
0¥'Z68'Li8
LL74EL'T0TS

¢ 1o £ abed

%GE'E SINIWLSTANI NO Q13iA IOVHIAY
8R3'00S'SLES {ULSOD) FoNYIVE INIWISIANI IOVHIAY
BZE'ST0'LS CINEYI IWCONE LSIHIEN
BlLL'Z8C'ES SNIGNT
{268'1Z0'2) ‘DNINNIDIG
SESTHIINI A3NHIDY
L06'v90% (81S¥8 HSWD) A3AIRDIH LSIHIIN
Advnygsd

31vd QL HY3A ZT0E

J1v¥a Ol B3N £202
ETOT Advndg3ad SANNE TV TVi0L
ALYQ 0L UYIA EZ0E
FEVD Ol H¥3A £20T
E20L AYYNHE3d
INNODOY 4338 HNYE AN
3 SNXILYN
a7 H3AVE
QIROYYLS
GNN4d 3adds3ay
£202 AYvYNYg3d

(SISVE HSVD) SONINYYI INJWLSIANI NO LHOJIY
ALHOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIDIYE GNY1IATTD ¥3LYIND



hFE'F
%005
WGLC
HEEC
WEEC
%805
NEES
%00S
%PL's
Hbl'g
WIS
WRGL'S
WOEP
%00t
WEEE
WEER
%80t
w002
L
%EE ¥

YebE'E

W%ig ¥
oyl

YebE'¥

WEED
WIG ¥

YOYE

YsE0
WEE'E
WLD'E
WEED
WEEF
WEE'S
WEE'E
®Rl0'e
w02
g TATRE
A
WEED

HTET

WBE'E

O34 ALIENLVYIN  [SIHILN
IDVHIAY 0L SAVD  JanuDoY
JDVHIAY

Ll B LU LI L

e
8
LEg
LTS
09
FEE

3

£80'STLME LEO'FES'OFLS
RETES Q00303 e 0eL
oS Zen'zols N
0% €88 POLE :
0% POLBIES i
H Tk oo0'S00'sS thf
£PL'GE O0o'Go0'sSE  £00L
BEE'IGE o00'co0'ss 0EL
8£1'92% O0S'G6%'1S  ¥BZL
ZTRGES DER'EIDEE  vEOL
0To0zs $98'SEL'1S H
£EEDES 000'c00'ss Se0L
¥EGR0LE oO0e'000'se SEOL
19979588 O00's00'S1S GG
1BE'69S BLOGRY'FS 652
SZO'9ES JO'eo0'sIE senl
S02°68% Dil'2B6'8%  £80L
£9E'188 GZZ'LEs'FE 08Ol
g56'98% GZL'PHE'ED S5
0% JE0'82Z '8y I
FEE'YLLS
¥ BOS'OPLS L
0% £85°32% L
0% 8.1°96E"8%
5 842'86% L
ot 205951 6% b
LE0'E0T __£2E'h9REES
s 0F 6892 L
Gt gL Pig L
3 GES'FLES L
(£ ggt'9c% L
0 8.2'598'02% L
TEL'E6S 0o000a'sE  GEOL
£HR'orS LEETIBLRS SBOL
eo0'zes QCO00GES  SBOL
O0E'cS OOGU0Z'ES  SH0E
£18515 DOGD0S'EE SBOL
TET'LLS 005G 268%%  SBOL
0s gee'als L
0% 1S8'595's4
o 1C8'C0RGS L
TYLIONIEd SAYd
IYLOL WHTE

Zjo | abeg

FIUYNI3S JOLTHH
HNWE ATH
HNYE ATH

d3TME-MNYD AT

SHENDITS A0LTHH

SOI00M 134US
SFHUHNIFS dOLTHH
SOVIOOIN T12ELS
SO0 1341Ls
SAYIOOm 134LES
SOYTODNN 134LLS
S TODN 1340
SO T30S
SILHENSIS JOLTHH
SOYIO0H 134ELS
SAYIGOE 1341ES
SNYICOIN 134ILS
SNYIOOIN 13HLES
CIHD 40 3EViS

OHHO 40 SEV4S
dIAMS-HNYE AT

HNYE AT
OHG 0 JLViS

HhWE AN
HNYE MO LIONIINAH
HMYE ONd
HNTE A3
CHHO AC 3EVAS
SNYI00IN 134118
SNYIO0IN 734118
SMVIC0IN 134118
SMYIDOIN 134US
SMYICHN 134US
SNYIODIN 1341
HNTE ATH

HNYE NOLORLINGH
NOILALEILSNE

JAHS
HI3 APA-NISYE HOLYD
H2F- LNwHD
H23 ADA-HILYIA OO
DMTHS
g4
DWTHA
W THS
gTH4
JRTHA
g
gTH
HH4
2 ANVEONYT 534S
gdTHd
THS
g0
g4
QG HYIS-HIEWN 1Yo

CHHO HYLS
HIZ AZH

"3 A3M
CHHO B LS

U3 ATH
IMAGIOY XL SIS
LNAODY AGCLEND Ond
Ced1d ALIALDY 34041
OIHG B¥.ls
H3iHL
B3+
B4
83Hd
814
g244

LHRE ATH-100W ANYHOWIW

ITHEYIN AZNOW
INIMNEISHI

£Z0Z ‘82 AYVNYE3d 4O SY
SINIALSIANI AUNSYIHL 30 AYOLNIAN]
ALROHINY LISNVHL TYNOISIH GNYTIATID ¥3LVIND

SEOZILET
EZOTILE
EZ0CIHE
LAV AL

STOTIRESL

SZOZILERL

FEOZALEL

STOZMBEDL

SELLILETL
SEQEP

SEQLIPLOL
SEOZI0EMS
SEQZIBLE
ECOEMPES
AR AL
SEORIEEIS
SEOLH0LE
YEOZIRE
AN

CEOTIE
EE0TE

AL E NS
AP S

EE0EE
EE0EME
EChENLE
ETOEfLE
EZDE e
FEGLFCL
BECTILTIG
GELERLY
GTOEFLES
PEOLIOEIE
FEQENIE
EZOLLE

£E0ZNE
3iva

QN HOLYH TYD0T TViodl
EEDEILSL
CE0ZIREE
EE0TIREIE
AN AT
EEQTIBEE
ECOE/LLE
CEOTIQEEL
ZEDERTTL
ZZ0LILETL
SENTHETL
EZOERTOL
TTOLMOESS
PR o
TTOTIBEL
CEOEILENS
cEOZHveEs
AN L i
CEOLigest
EZ0TIBEIE
OhAd HOEYIN w307

ONNH LNFWSFH04NT YT TWEOL
EZ0ZI8EE

EZ0LBEE OMNS ININZDIH0ANT /vt

QNS IONYENSNE TYLOL
EZOTIIIE
EECEATE
GNd IDNYHASM

QNS TWHINTS TYLOL
AL
ESHIGERE
SEOTIPEE
EZOEIREE
CZLEATIE
CEDEFTIOE
CTREIATIY
COBTIEEY
STOEILESE
AT S
LZhEse
SEGEIGEE M TYHINID

ONMF ANTWIHILTH ONOE TVL0L

EEGLIBEIE
AivQ

ONNS LNINIL T ANOY
ONRd

ALRENIYN JISVYHIHND



T6G86°%

WOl
FTA
W%5ED
WiZE
LAY
%El's
WSEE
HEES
TLEE
TS
%S5
S los
el
FATA R
WoRE
FUL A
YBE 0
Flb'E
W"ELE
HOEF
wlOE
HGE
WEST
%O0'E
%SEL

H8TL

Wred

HEED
iSO
RER'D
YL
w52l
W8T
WEED

RS

WEh P
F R

LEE

Lol LB G

oD
G4
268
26k
0831
HES

A
Zhl

LBE
ity
S04
QLS
LTy
L9
GEL

L
L

5L1Z8ETS

Frd g ivd:id
g
o5
#5+"1%
LOL%
FEV'1S
ILB'ES
ari'LLE
EFi'Be
81815
CrOrOEs
£55'¥Ch
CiELES
PES'I0LS
ZEL'90S
=t
8305
953 10%
g5r iLLE
PEI'QHLE
16E°69%
11E'8L12
9FEEFS
0$L°528
£80°E

VLS WELE

£Z8%
85928
309'HS
BbD11S
6817428
$I5°083
L9918
0s

o5

os
oz

7314 ALIENLYNE 1S3H3LNI
HOVHIAY OL8AVA C3ndoov

SOVHIAY

Sit'iLc'zees

SEC'TI0EELE
0T feo Les
IG'eLE
000'000'GLES
0o 005'sS
080 004'sS
0s000asE
000 00a'e:%
LRty
£85°0ERS
oD0'eon'ss
OOG'GRL RS
BOG'SEG'FS
o00'co0'sS
LEF'SEEFE
oOo'con'sE
SO 'PEE'YE
000'c00'sS
L0o'000'ss
o00'oo0'st
GEO'SRE'PE
000'000's%
000'600'5%
PES'CI'TE
008 L¥6'FE

OSZIL'RES
056698
00g'000' e
000005 2%
00& 000 5%
SiT'SPE LS
SLE'GrFE'LS
861 '¥B5'vE
908 4S8

990'092'L%
PES'BLE
VESEd
WLOL

L

1EL
LEL
LG
889
oEd
€003
ELS
5601
E004
G601
F5S
&8¢
GEOL
G601
L9E
BZL
l2la ]
B3
GEGL
2]
218
Hir

=1
S60L
G603
SE0E
¥y
ElE
LG
1

BES'GEL'ES

b
b

SAYD
LR

Z o T sbeg

OIHO IO 3EYAS
HMWE A3

S3AILIHAS3E JOLTTIH
S3AILIHA23AE dOLTTIH
SNYIONN 133148
FALKNOAS dOLTHH
SILRINDAS SOLTTHH
SNYIOOIN 134i1s
SMHEICDIN 418
SCN T341Ls
EMYTOTIN T341Ls
SAIODIN T3S
SFHLWNIIES JOLTHHE
SHHHNDIS S0LTHH
SOOI 1340LE
SO0 734ELS
S3LHNI3S GO THH
SFHUENDIIS dOLTHH
SOOI IS
S3HIYNI3S dOETHH
STWTODIN 13ELS
SO0 1348LS
SSIHND3E JOLTHH
S314HN335 JOETIH

SOOI 13dLLS
SNYICON 134iLS
SNVISGIN 1341LS
SOYIOOIN 134LS
SOVIOTIN 1330S
SNOVIO0IN 134ES
S311HEND3T JOLTIH
MWL ATM

OHO 40 3LVES
MWW A

NOILALELSH]

OHHC BY1S
HIT AT
ThTHA
A
B
2§ cE|
BIH4
8044
HH4
SWHA
2HHA
A5 WOy AuisyIEl SN
49 W0 H1H3
d3 oY YN
S92 104 g3HS
5 W g4
giHd
gTH
HHd
d3 HNYEONYT H3AYE
HHL
TS
JLON AHNSYIHL S0
FLON AHNSY3HL S0

Ll
834
HH
HiH=
R ZF:

HS

FEON AUNSYIHL 80
H33 AT

CIHO W¥1s
I3 ATH

LMIVETVHLS N

£Z0Z "8 AMVNUB3d 40 SV
SINIWLISIANI AUNSYIHL S0 AHCLNIANI
ALRMOEINY LISNVHL TYNOIDTE ONVI3AT IS H3LYIED

A ETAERIN S ALTAL FAT
£TOLLE ECOTIRZ/IE
GE0ZIRET  EEOTIBTIE
SEOEIREE CEOTIREIE
A AT AL R A A AT A
PEOZSMZEE  CEOTVEE
SEOLVTIE  LTOUVER
SEOLMLLEY  EEDESALE
PEJEMLIG  EEDEMSLE
QEGEILE: EERELLEN
CEOT/BTRL  EELEMTIEL
FEOLSLEL 20BN L
YEQLIBTZ  ZEDErsEe
ECOTITES ZTOLMLESL
SEOE/EES ZEOEFEDS
FEOEMEL  1T0E/EL
PEUZHHES  TE0EHE
ECOC/BESS  ZE0EAHEE
SE0ZA0LE  ZEOZHES
EEOEWEY  ZEQZTMEEL/L
SEOTIEMS  ZE0ZMers
SE0CiPbe Z20&PLE
EE0ZINENL  ZE0TIETE
EE0TAF 2ol
PEOTIHE FEZOTHE
PIOLISIF LEOESSiE
FEOZIOCAE  LEOEMES
VEOTMOZE | ZOEI9TiR
PEOLREE  ZI20EIRTE
FEOZISE  2Z0TISTiE
PEOEOEY [AETATA
CECTIVE EZ0EATIZ
CEOTE CECTIeTIE
ALTANN ESQTIFLE
3Jiv¥a Aiv¥Q3

ALENLYIN ISYHIUNG

SONOS TV TV¥LOE
ONIIS SAUISITY TYLOL

NS AH35I
ONftd TV LGYD WY TYIo!

OMN TWLIEYD Wiy
ONfId NOISNSd Turiol

MNd NCISNId
QN



81570073

158'538°0%
JOEeHiay puoy

000SB'LIP'ES 1 DU'S46'0PE'aS | 00'DDO'DLSTES 00'S/G'00SS 00°S.6°DERS 00'gs OEI5'0E6%  DOODO'SLG LS
COO0S'LSS'L  § O0SLT0OCE o acasg’ | 00054 NSz 0o0sL 05 Bo'0 00'054'05T CDOCO'0s0'aL
COODG'GES'L | O00SLZer' L Qo 0n0'0sE' L CO0Si'ELL Q0GSLTLE ooo AN =T AN AU OGOLES
COOSL98%'y [ OUGSE'R80'F [ D0'DOD'DOZ'E CO'S.8'86¢8 {J0Gig'B8E oG J0rs/e'ese COrOcN'sEs'SL
COOGE'RIR'L P OO0OE'ELL'L Qo0o0'nLe'l COooL sl G061 coe 0000 a0 Q0 00 0PGS
£207 £TOTILITL ETOTIMTL STOLILL STOZI LIS £TOZLIS £ZT0TILIS ZTOZILIEL

uswaambay | Auswsmbey jareieg fafqefed Ausiuaimbay faedey 1Bigefied Burpumsing
198 B0} ao|AIBg 130 fed g 3saiay 8IS 1930 tedisilig ¥SaIqL| {edisung jmo)

€202 '82 AYVAYETL 40 SY

STILVLS ONY 3TNUIHOS 2IANES 1530

ALMOHLNY LISNYYL TYNOIDEY GNYTIZATTD HW3LVIND

PasIfDaY SPIsY 195 MGLOR

(2202 jo) BpIsY 185 sduLiey JUsLRD

OECE 'Fag
LE0E 2ag
H20E ey
SE0E 2ag
HeQg
Aumeny
[ F

splog (eloL
‘ASY XB] SIBS-GL0T SOUSS
'ASY XB1 $3{85-9107 S8|aS
ADY XB] S8BS-GLOZ SAUeS

Ey XB] SSES-LOE saleg

spusy



6t

ALIHOLYN
ADVHIAY

%56 ©
%o e
el E
%GED
%6
%GED
%0% 0
aatA
FOVHIAY

%0000%
%8858
pANENA
By
hEd 8T
%4070
%ig}
Tvi0l

20 INSO¥Ad

z68'0L)'c8s$ Sip'I15'T8Es
000'00v'Ze2s GBE'166'L5ZS
000'000'0LS BED'DLL'BS
L9Z'689'ES 19Z'689'cS
6E8'GTL OIS BEB'SZTIOLLS
£8£'823 £8L'82S
60V L2603 69S'Z16'08
LNMOWY ToIONIYS
2R E
£20Z ‘82 AWvVNYE34 sy

OH1041d0d LNIWLSIANI 40 NOILISOdINOD

OO0 JLSLUISTAL] 1E0 |
SBHINISS UBLULIBACT: "
aded |ersuiuen
URCODY Sley ipeiD sBuiluen
Giyo JElg
Wnoooy daamg yueg Aoy
UNGIYY 18Y4ep ASUow
IS S|



%910 YHED'D
R8T SliF el
il ¥ HEEE %elEE
WRBLE %fSE E A
WiBT %B0'E %idE
WBLE E5T %B83T
Sb0'E $e0E A
Bl SaRg L SBLE
%l SaBZL Sargl
050 Y80 HE L
%0l WMESD %EED
%01 0 KT SEFQ
%lOTC pAlTA %%EED
%i00 Y20 el D
CEFEETEN #07EA 33k
13xdvil QuEVONYLS 30vVHIAY

FAAITd

tEE FLLES

SLLGrE'LE
L19'Lses
E9LE0L L
OrE'B05E
510548
EZS'8rSs
Fisigeizisiy
990'e8ES
BOS'E0LS
¥5E'¥05
0se' L
49828
L EE
LSIAINI

EZLEEE'SHES

ZETFOV'GIES
L L GFDBIES
FHE'aFL'05e8
148 IPE'DO0S
B.6°{BI 0SS
SEE'95F BSES
BOL BB BSES
9F9'S0S OrES
¥08 (95 '862S
DSE5LE0gEs
95047 00ES
CL5 virG'ages
SONY Ve
JADVHIAY

YAy o8GO
WEETY WP
WEF P W8S
%hl¥ UL ¥
#II13IA #0134

LHWASNOW JUYONYLS

PiE1A A 4 pund Asuoy Ansealy S sienba preia joer #

WFET

WEGT
%ELE
1314
JOVHIAY
£eoe

£20Z '82 AMVYNYE3Y HONOYHL 314 OL ¥Y3A
JONYWEOIUId LNSWLSTAN] S0 ALVINNS

ALIMOHINY LISNYHL TWNOIDIH ONYTIEATNDS H3L¥34D

'Siig Anseas] WeEow 9 10} spield Juseanbs vodnes sbesase Buropy #

XA (¥3ann) B3AD SOT3iA DVEIAY VY

EBOPLLES LSS L Er'biE
BEESZOLE EECZOC'SiCE
¥GLEE0 S U809 ELES
sEHE AINYIYE
153¢3LIN J9VH3IAY

W OL Hv3A

HIBWITAC

H3aaW3IAON

HIACEO0

304

LSnany

AT

INAP

Avi

Tedy

HOdEw

AdVTHEES

AHSTINGT
HiNGH



"IGILBULICUI JEUCLERDE Ja]
D5-0Z0T BN UAGMNIGS3Y SIS9S40 PIROE PUE 570 3NPACI] SAENSIUILEY ‘[A3IC 12821 ALl0YInY JIsUEs] [Rueiay pUEBAIL) FISRID SU 4o suonenTsy pue SIEE PELIDGT BUL 10 965 ra1deys 03 JgEs ssealy

TEOE "£7 MBI palep AUl WaIS "% OF LoWId0 Aosiapy | EISU0ISSELLIaD SIYLE C10
B0-TTOE Jegquunp uniAdD eOsSHUAD 3L om0
GTOZ '3 A2 Poiep (Sirepy (2837 - |00 pacsuzg Buay A4S 63 UGIGIEn AX0SIARY B35 BOSSHULIGT SITE o0
T-FEZ0-IN -EQ0T SRGLUAN WO |2e00)of BOSSHULRDT $I113 o0
(3] pue {Q}E0 70T 56085 FPAD pIsEEY Olyo
ez IXURYELICD U3 34 OF SEENDEIPUl aq2aidue Joy papiacud Fuied S uaRe D Si |

=10
3¥pag: ey Aueg SIEH SN
Jenysi8zy pueg UQ[SBLA NG H B3] £0 SUER

SWIWSAAU OO YYLS

LML)
RO ¥E] S|ES PUE JUDLLISINRY PUGR jUeq Losdununy
JIAD3TY Mosas] PHTYL U3jed
DURY JERSIT PUE TUNRAy [RIpOSEE} AAEG Jhd
SoHmlEs Furueg wiggy) ELEg ABy

drysucefs Jb 3ntenN UOIINLASUE JRUBLEL HUES

£T0Z '3T Aizragag 3o sy
sdiysusiieEy [2RUeL pug Sunjuey
Aoy NSUEE] BUGIEaY PUREAZY JTjeID



